
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Helen Johnson

28 March 2019

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL to be held on Monday 8 April 2019 at 7.30 
pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, 
AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS 

To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies.

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2019 
(previously circulated).

4.  ACTIONS UPDATE 

Revisions to the Council’s Constitution was debated and agreed at Council on 
Monday 25 March 2019.  A number of general changes to committee procedures 
were agreed, but there were no changes to the number of Councillors that will form 
the Estate Management Appeals Panel.

Public Document Pack



5.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 10 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA 

6.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

7.  97 HANDSIDE LANE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2018/1776/EM - 
RETROSPECTIVE ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSION (Pages 
5 - 22)

The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
retrospective erection of a two storey rear extension.

8.  202 KNIGHTSFIELD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2018/2849/EM - 
REPLACEMENT FRONT DOOR (Pages 23 - 52)

The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
replacement of a front door.

9.  74 ROSEDALE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY -  6/2018/2851/EM -   REPLACEMENT 
OF CONSERVATORY (Pages 53 - 76)

The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out the appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for 
the replacement of an existing conservatory.

10.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

11.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 12 and 13 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A(3) and Paragraphs 5 (privileged and legal advice) and 
6 (statutory notice or order) Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.

    



PART II

12.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 

13.  UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF 
THE MANAGEMENT SCHEME FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES 
OF THAT SCHEME (Pages 77 - 94)

Circulation: Councillors S.Glick (Chairman)
H.Bower
H.Bromley
A.Chesterman

M.Cowan
P.Mabbott
L.Musk

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Helen 
Johnson, Governance Services on 01707 357467 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Author: Tom Gabriel

Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Wards: Handside

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEAL PANEL – 8 APRIL 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
6/2018/1776/EM 

97 HANDSIDE LANE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 6SP 

RETROSPECTIVE ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

APPLICANT: MRS A MAWER 

(Handside) 

1 Background 

1.1 This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
retrospective erection of a two storey rear extension. The application 
(6/2018/1776/EM) was refused for the following reason:  

           By virtue of the overlooking caused by the clear glazed bedroom window in the 
northern elevation and the obscure glazed but openable window in the southern 
elevation, the development has resulted in direct and unobstructed overlooking 
across the rear amenity areas of the neighbouring dwellings at 95 and 99 Handside 
Lane. This has resulted in a detrimental and unacceptable impact upon the amenities 
of the occupiers of those dwellings, contrary to Policies EM1 and EM2 of the Estate 
Management Scheme. 

2 Site Description 

2.1 The subject property is a large two storey detached dwelling house located to the 
east of Handside Lane. The property features a front gable and a flat roof front 
porch, a rear conservatory and side to rear garage built up to the northern 
boundary of the site. The property is sited in a large plot and has an open front 
forecourt garden and parking for three cars. 

2.2 The street scene comprises detached, semi- detached and terraced dwellings with a 
variety of architectural features in large plots. 

3 The Proposal 

3.1  The application sought retrospective Estate Management consent for the erection 
of a two storey rear extension.  This was the only Estate Management application 
submitted for the site.  

3.2 Planning permission was originally granted in February 2016 (ref.  
6/2015/2470/HOUSE) for a development of the same description. However, no 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



Page 2

Estate Management application was submitted for that development.  The 
development commenced and during the course of construction, it became 
apparent that the works were not entirely in accordance with the previously 
approved plans. An additional window serving an en-suite bathroom to bedroom 
3 has been introduced at first floor level in the northern side elevation (facing No. 
95 Handside Lane) and an additional window has been introduced in the southern 
side elevation at first floor level serving a bedroom (facing No. 99 Handside Lane), 
together with alterations to the existing permitted first floor window serving the 
landing (in the southern elevation, facing No. 99 Handside Lane).  That window 
has been made smaller.  Additionally, alterations have been made to the 
openings in the ground floor southern flank elevation of the extension and include 
an additional window and smaller bi-fold doors.  The garage was also proposed 
to be converted into a utility room and alterations have been proposed to the size 
and style of window that would serve this room.  The existing conservatory was 
also shown to be demolished.

 3.2 The extension was also built with a gabled roof when the approved plan for the 
planning application showed a hipped roof on the proposed side elevations but a 
gabled roof on the rear elevation (an inconsistency in the approved plans). The 
result of this is that either roof form could be constructed lawfully.  

3.3 The Estate Management application sought consent for the same development 
that was proposed under the planning application, reference 6/2018/1775/VAR, 
which included the above variation to the original two storey extension that was 
granted permission.

4 Relevant Estate Management History 

4.1      Application Number: 6/2015/2470/HOUSE Decision: Granted    Decision Date: 
4 February 2016 
Proposal: Erection of a two storey rear extension. Granted. A condition restricting the 
insertion of windows in the first floor flank elevations of the extension was not imposed 
upon this permission. 

4.2 Application Number: 6/2018/1775/VAR Decision: Refused    Decision Date: 30 
October 2018
Proposal: Variation of condition 3 (details windows) on planning permission 
6/2015/2470/HOUSE. An appeal against this refusal has been submitted to the 
Planning Inspectorate though a start date for the appeal has not yet been established.

5 Policy 

5.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008): 

5.2 EM1 – Extensions and Alterations 

6 Discussion 
 

Page 6



6.1 This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management consent. The 
appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1 and the delegated officer’s 
report for application 6/2018/1776/EM, is attached at Appendix 2.  

 
6.2      The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the development 

on the residential amenities of the occupiers of Nos. 95 and 99 Handside Lane, 
which are the adjoining residential properties.  Whilst policy EM2 has been referred 
to within the reason for refusal, Policy EM1 is the only relevant policy.

 
6.3     The proposal is for the retrospective erection of a two storey rear extension designed 

with a gabled roof. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme outlines that 
extensions and alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if they are in 
keeping with the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in 
the existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and 
values of the surrounding area or the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers. 
Therefore, as with all applications submitted to the Council, an assessment is 
made with regard to the impact of the proposal upon the amenities of the 
neighbouring properties in terms of overlooking, loss of light and whether the 
proposal is overbearing or not for those properties. 

 
6.4 With regard to the design and appearance of the proposed extension, the 

extension is very similar to the proposals granted planning permission in 2016 and 
no objections have been raised in this regard. The roof as constructed (as a gabled 
roof) is acceptable and has not caused any significant harm to the character and 
appearance of the dwelling or the amenities of the occupiers of the neighbouring 
dwellings through loss of outlook or light, as a result of the siting of the roof away 
from the boundaries with those dwellings.

6.5 The main concerns with this proposal are with regard to the proposed first floor 
window in the southern elevation, serving bedroom 3 and the first floor side 
windows in the northern elevation serving bedroom 2 and the en suite bathroom 
to bedroom 3 and the impact that they have on both neighbouring dwellings, Nos. 
95 and 99 Handside Lane, with regard to a detrimental loss of privacy and harm 
to their residential amenity.  

6.6 The proposed first floor window in the southern elevation (serving bedroom 3) is 
not shown on the plans submitted to be obscure glazed or indeed non-opening 
below a certain height.  The case officer was aware however that the window was 
obscure glazed following a site visit, but considered it was capable of being 
opened below 1.8m and would therefore permit views directly across the rear of 
the neighbouring dwelling at No. 99 and its private amenity space. However, the 
associated planning application outlines that if the side openings of this window 
were removed, the potential for overlooking would be overcome.  The appellant 
has outlined in the supporting statement and submitted photographs to show that 
this window has only one top opening above the height of 1.8m, and is obscure 
glazed, to ensure that there would be no loss of privacy to these neighbours.  
Accordingly, on this basis there are no concerns raised from officers with regard 
to overlooking into No. 99 Handside Lane or indeed any other neighbouring 
property from this window, which could be conditioned in the event of an approval.

Page 7



Page 4

6.7 The first floor window in the northern elevation serving bedroom 2 was conditioned 
under the planning application 6/2015/2470/HOUSE to be glazed with obscured 
glass and fixed shut so as to be incapable of being opened below a height of 1.8m 
above floor level.  It is however clear glazed and openable below 1.8m.  The 
appellant contends that the clear glazed and openable window has not harmed 
the amenities of the occupiers of No. 95 Handside Lane as the view is onto the 
side brick wall elevation of that property.  While the window does permit viewing 
towards the rear of No. 95 Handside Lane and the private amenity space of that 
dwelling, the view is obstructed by the parapet walls around the single storey 
single/ rear projection of No. 95. There is therefore no clear line of sight to the 
private amenity area of this dwelling, as evidenced by the case officer for the 
application on site. Therefore, the window as installed has not resulted in an undue 
loss of privacy for the occupiers of this property and has not resulted in an 
unacceptable impact upon the amenities of the occupiers of this dwelling.  

 
6.8 With regard to the first floor window serving the en suite bathroom in the northern 

elevation (looking towards No. 95 Handside Lane), this is obscure glazed and non- 
opening below 1.8m and does not permit overlooking across the rear of No. 95. It 
is acceptable.  With regard to the first floor window in the southern elevation 
serving the landing (looking towards No. 99 Handside Lane), this is obscure glazed 
and non- opening to 1.8m above internal floor level. It does not permit overlooking 
across the rear of No. 99 Handside Lane and has not harmed the amenities of the 
occupiers of this dwelling.  

6.6 Overall, it is considered that the concerns with regard to the first floor southern 
facing window serving the bedroom have been overcome as the window is non-
opening below 1.8m and obscure glazed and has adequately maintained an 
acceptable level of privacy for the occupants of No. 99 Handside Lane.  With 
regard to the first floor window in the northern elevation serving bedroom 2, the 
presence of the parapet walls around the around the single storey single/ rear 
projection of No. 95 obstructs the view from this window to sufficient a degree that 
it has not resulted in an unacceptable loss of privacy for the occupants of No. 95 
Handside Lane.  Accordingly the proposed development has maintained the 
amenities and values of the Estate Management Area.

7 Conclusion  
 
7.1 The first floor window in the northern elevation of the extension which has clear 

glass and is openable, but is not considered to have resulted in a detrimental loss 
of privacy for the occupants of No. 95 Handside Lane and has not impacted on 
their residential amenity. The proposal is therefore in compliance with Policy EM1 
of the Estate Management Scheme.

 
8 Recommendation 
 
8.1 That Members allow the appeal. 

Name of author: Tom Gabriel 01707 357517
Title: Development Management Officer
Date: 27 March 2019 

Page 8



 

Background papers to be listed 

Appendix 1: Appellant’s Statement (and attachments) 
Appendix 2: Officer Report  

Page 9



Page 6
Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2018/1776/EM
Location: 97 Handside Lane Welwyn Garden City AL8 6SP
Proposal: Retrospective erection of a two storey rear extension
Officer:  Mr Tom Gabriel

Recommendation: Refused

6/2018/1776/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

The application site comprises a large two storey detached dwellinghouse 
located to the east of Handside Lane. The property features a front gable and a 
flat roof front porch, a rear conservatory and side to rear garage built up to the 
northern boundary of the site. The property is sited in a large plot and has an 
open front forecourt garden and parking for three cars. 

The street scene comprises detached, semi- detached and terraced dwellings 
with a variety of architectural features in large plots. 

The application is for the erection of a two storey rear extension (retrospective). 

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history Enforcement

Application Number: ENF/2018/0175Decision: Decision Date: 
Proposal: Works not in accordance with the approved plans 6/2015/2470/ 
HOUSE - additional window on side elevation and alterations to roof line

Planning

Application Number: 6/2018/1775/VAR Decision: Concurrent application
Proposal: Variation of condition 3 (details windows) on planning permission 
6/2015/2470/HOUSE

Application Number: 6/2015/2470/HOUSE Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 02 March 2016
Proposal: Erection of two storey rear extension

Notifications
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 3 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

• This huge extension is totally out of scale with the dwelling and the 
adjoining properties and it completely dominates the view to the north; 

• It is completely against garden city ideals;

Page 19



2 of 4

• There are two windows one of which is large and appears not to be opaque 
which we understood had to be the case if it overlooked adjoining properties 
which obviously it does;

• Has this extension been built without planning approval? Because we find it 
hard to believe that approval would have been granted for this inappropriate 
extension. If so how has this been allowed to happen?

• The bedroom window in the side elevation gives an intrusive, direct and 
uninterrupted view from their bedroom into the internal living areas of our 
home and also on to the most private area of our garden;

• This is a gross invasion of our privacy. Obscure glazing is not an 
acceptable solution for window swerving main rooms;

• The extension neither maintains nor enhances the amenities or values of 
Welwyn Garden City and disregards the convenience and welfare of 
residents;

• The development should be reverted to the original approval; and

• Alterations to the layout of the extension should be made to minimise 
impact upon the neighbouring property.

Consultee 
responses

Welwyn Garden City Society - objects to the development as the application 
does not relate to changes to the original application granted under 
6/2015/2470/HOUSE but to other matters. The drawing submitted clearly 
illustrates the non- compliant changes carried out during the construction. This 
appears to be an attempt to circumscribe the potential for enforcement action 
on the six unauthorised changes to the approved scheme.

The application 6/2015/2470/HOUSE was not submitted with the required and 
parallel EMS submission as is a normal requirement for any submission within 
the designated area.

The applicant’s explanation for the changes and the subsequent exchanges 
with the Building Control Department and later the Planning Department 
beggar belief. In the event that the story is correct, it appears Building Control 
are, apparently, giving definitive determinations on the acceptability, or 
otherwise, of matters that should, correctly, be matters for the Planning 
Department and determined by the submission of an application for material 
changes to the drawings/ scheme attached to the consent. 

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Design (form, 
size, scale, siting) 
and Character 
(impact upon 
amenities and 
values of Garden 
City)

The extension to the dwelling is a large addition to it but has been constructed 
with matching materials. The extension is in keeping with the appearance of 
the property and it has not harmed the amenities and value of the area or the 
character of the property. While the windows match the existing windows at 
the property, the patio doors and the bi- fold doors do not. However, the 
Council has taken a pragmatic and flexible approach to glazing (doors and 
windows) at ground floor level at the rear of properties for a considerable 
period of time. Such an approach takes into account the increases in the size 
and internal arrangement/ form of living accommodation and the resulting 
change in requirements for associated fully glazed folding doors. Sited in the 
rear and flank elevations at ground floor level, they may not necessarily be in 

Page 20



3 of 4

keeping with the design of the original property, but as they are not visible 
within the street scene or wider area, officers take a more relaxed approach. 
As a result there are many such alterations within the Scheme area and to 
refuse this application would not be reasonable, not least because officers do 
not consider that it would adversely affect the amenities and values of the area 
sufficiently to warrant refusal.

Impact on 
neighbours

The first floor window in the southern elevation serving the landing is obscure 
glazed and non- opening below 1.8m. It does not permit overlooking across 
the rear of 99 Handside Lane. The additional window in the southern elevation 
(serving bedroom 3) is obscure glazed but is capable of being opened below 
1.8m and permits viewing directly across the rear of the neighbouring dwelling 
at 99 and its private amenity space. However, if the side openings of this 
window were removed, the potential for overlooking would be overcome. This 
could be conditioned if the development were found to be acceptable.

The first floor window in the northern elevation serving bedroom 2 is clear 
glazed and openable below 1.8m. It does permit viewing directly across the 
rear of 95 Handside Lane and the private amenity space of this dwelling. The 
additional window in the northern elevation (serving the en suite bathroom to 
bedroom 3) is obscure glazed and non- opening below 1.8m and does not 
permit overlooking across 95. It is acceptable. 

Though the additional (bedroom) window in the southern elevation is large and 
is visible from the rear amenity area of 99 Handside Lane, it is not considered 
that it has an adverse impact upon the amenities of the occupiers of this 
dwelling through perceived overlooking if it were to be obscure glazed and 
non- opening below 1.7m. The additional (bathroom) window in the northern 
elevation is far smaller and also does not caused perceived overlooking. 

However, by virtue of the overlooking caused by the clear glazed bedroom 
window in the northern elevation and the obscure glazed but openable window 
in the southern elevation, the development has resulted in direct and 
unobstructed overlooking across the rear of the neighbouring dwellings at 95 
and 99 Handside Lane. This has resulted in an unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of the occupiers of those dwellings and is contrary to Policies EM1 
and EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

The changes to the ground floor openings in the southern elevation, the 
reduction in the width of the ground and first floor windows in the rear elevation 
of the extension, the partial conversion of the garage and the removal of the 
conservatory have also not had an adverse impact upon the amenities of the 
neighbouring occupiers. These alterations are considered acceptable in terms 
of neighbour impact.

Landscaping 
issues (incl. 
hardstandings)

None.

Any other 
considerations 

None.

Conclusion
By virtue of the overlooking caused by the clear glazed bedroom window in the northern elevation 
and the obscure glazed but openable window in the southern elevation, the development has 
resulted in direct and unobstructed overlooking across the rear amenity areas of the neighbouring 
dwellings at 95 and 99 Handside Lane. This has resulted in a detrimental and unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of the occupiers of those dwellings, contrary to Policies EM1 and EM2 of the 

Page 21



4 of 4

Estate Management Scheme. 

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. By virtue of the overlooking caused by the clear glazed bedroom window in the 
northern elevation and the obscure glazed but openable window in the southern 
elevation, the development has resulted in direct and unobstructed overlooking 
across the rear amenity areas of the neighbouring dwellings at 95 and 99 Handside 
Lane. This has resulted in a detrimental and unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of the occupiers of those dwellings, contrary to Policies EM1 and EM2 of 
the Estate Management Scheme. 

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

1550-01 D Existing and Proposed Plans, 
Block Plan & Location Plan

15 August 2018

Determined By:

Mr Chris Carter
9 November 2018

Page 22



Part I 
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton 

Author:  Sarah Smith
Wards: Sherrards

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEAL PANEL – 8 APRIL 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
6/2018/2849/EM 

202 KNIGHTSFIELD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7RQ 

REPLACEMENT FRONT DOOR 

APPLICANT: MR & MRS G BRIANT

(Sherrards) 

1 Background 

1.1 This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
replacement of a front door. The application was refused for the following reason:  

           The proposed front door, by virtue of its uncharacteristic colour, would constitute a 
change that would be significantly out of character with the area to the detriment of 
the character and appearance of the property and the immediate street scene.  
Accordingly the proposal would fail to maintain the values and amenities of the Estate 
Management Scheme and is contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management 
Scheme.

2 Site Description 

2.1 The appeal property is a two storey end terrace dwelling located on a corner plot 
with Knightsfield and a non through road. The front door is on the side of the 
property, facing this non through road.  The existing door is white upvc with the 
top half in one glazed panel of six panes.  

2.2 The street scene comprises semi- detached and terraced dwellings with a relatively 
consistent design and appearance. 

3 The Proposal 

3.1  The appeal seeks consent to change the front door from white to a composite 
red.  Its style and design would alter with two glazed panels in the upper half.

4 Relevant Estate Management History 

4.1      None

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



Page 2

5 Policy 

5.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008): 

5.2 EM1 – Extensions and Alterations 

6         Representations

6.1      Two letters of support have been received as a result of the appeal from Nos. 200 and 
203 Knightsfield.  They can be summarised as;

 Mixed colours doors and style brings character and life to the area;
 No conformity of style or colour of front doors in roads or rows of houses;
 The doors is to the side of the road and is not clearly visible;
 The door match the boundary fence; and 
 The colour and style of door is an enhancement to the area.

7 Discussion 
 
7.1 This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management consent. The 

appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1 and the delegated officer’s 
report for application 6/2019/2849/EM, is attached at Appendix 2.  

 
7.2      The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the proposed 

development on the values and amenities of the property and the surrounding 
area. The impact on the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers is considered 
to be acceptable.

7.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and in 
order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate 
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme and 
its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes are kept 
in harmony with the original design and concept of the town. 

7.4 Policy EM1 aims for alterations to be in keeping with the existing property and not 
harm the values and amenities of the area.  Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme (EMS) refers to extensions and alterations, and states that 
extensions and alterations will only be allowed where the works are in keeping 
with the design, appearance, materials and architectural detail used in the existing 
building, and would not harm the amenities and values of the area.

7.5 This part of Knightsfield is characterised with terrace properties.  A common 
architectural design of those properties is that front doors and fenestration are 
predominantly white.  Mid terrace dwellings have the front door facing the road, 
whereas the end terraces have the door positioned to the side.  Whilst the design 
of the door may vary, the colour remains relatively consistent.  Given the visibility 
of doors and their overall style and design they contribute to the values and 
amenities of the area.  

Page 24



7.6 The existing door is white upvc and sited to the side of the property and consistent 
with the surrounding area.  The proposed front door, would be a different design 
and would constitute a change of colour to red.  Whist there is no concern raised 
with regard to the design of the door given the existing door’s design together with 
those within the area, the proposed colour would contrast with the surrounding 
properties in the area and introduce an incongruous addition to the property and 
street scene.  As a result it would cause harm to the amenities and values of the 
area, which would be readily viewable within the street scene.  

7.7 Accordingly the proposal would not preserve the unique architectural heritage of 
the town and would cause harm to the character and appearance of the building 
and street scene, resulting in a detrimental harm upon the amenities and values 
of the Garden City contrary to Policy EM1.

7.8 A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of the appeal. The appellant 
outlines that doors on this street and within the area have a variety of colours including 
red, blue, black, yellow and white amongst many others and in a variety of door styles. 
The white doors are in the majority the remnants of the upvc revolution of the 1990s 
where white was the only colour available.   The appellant does note that some of the 
references within the case officer’s report are not within the Estate Management 
Scheme which include Nos. 203 and 205 Knightsfield.

7.9 The applicant has submitted that none of the original doors in this area were white with 
them being generally the same style but in many different colours including red and 
blue, which was the only choice as a tenant during the regular maintenance cycles.  
The appellant outlines that over time as properties were bought from the Authority 
owners have painted the doors in different colours but always strong primary colours 
and never white, with the one exception at 185 Knightsfield.  Whilst officers have no 
reason to dispute this, and the colour of the original door may have been red, however 
the design and style of the doors were consistent, as can be seen from the appellant’s 
attached photographs, with a proportion of the frame being white.  As a result the effect 
would have been a consistent architectural appearance which contributed to the values 
and amenities of the properties and the area.

7.10 The appellant outlines that the statement in the officer’s report that outlines that;  ‘doors 
in Knightsfield were replaced as one project in recent years and were all white at one 
time’ is untrue and shows a lack of understanding and knowledge of the area.  The 
appellant states that the doors replaced as one project were only the remaining Council 
owned properties.  

7.11 The appellant also outlines that the door is not visible from public vantage points and 
the only significant view is from Nos. 1 and 2 Malmsdale and 201 to 213 Knightsfield.  
The site is a corner plot and the door is sited on the side elevation visible from 
Knightsfield and Malmsdale.  

7.12 Additionally a number of letters of support have been included within this statement.  It 
is considered that only those letters of support submitted directly to the council provide 
any material representation.

7.13. Overall, it is considered that a compelling case has not been made by the 
appellant to demonstrate why the circumstances advanced by the occupants of 
this particular property, when considered in its context, should override the wider 
values and amenities of the area.  Accordingly, the proposal fails to reflect the 
character and appearance of the terrace properties to which it is located and the 
streetscene of Knightsfield. The proposed development therefore fails to maintain 
the amenities and values of the Estate Management Area.

Page 25



Page 4

 
8 Conclusion  
 
8.1 No additional evidence or information has been put forward by the appellant which 

adds to or would alter officer’s recommendation. The proposed colour of the new 
front door, design, and appearance in a prominent location of Knightsfield, would 
be unacceptable and have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance 
of the appeal property, the row of terrace properties in which it is located and the 
surrounding street scene. Therefore the proposed colour and design of the door 
would cause harm to the values and amenities of the area and the proposal fails 
to accord with Policy EM1 of the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management 
Scheme

 
9 Recommendation 
 
9.1 That Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal. 

Name of author: Sarah Smith 01707 357512 
Title: Principal Development Management Officer 
Date: 20 March 2019 
 

Background Information 

Appendix 1: Appellant’s Statement (and attachments) 
Appendix 2: Officer Report  

Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 1 of 19 
 

Appeal submission to support Estate Management 
Application: - 06/2018/2849/EM 

 

Replacement of Front Door. 

For 202 Knightsfield, Welwyn Garden City 

 
We, Mr G and Mrs J Briant, wish to appeal the decision dated 18th January 2019 to refuse the 
request to replace the front door at 202 Knightsfield, Welwyn Garden City. 

 

The reason for the appeal is that the consent for the change has been 
unreasonably withheld by WHBC. 
  

Page 29



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 2 of 19 
 

Copyright right Clauses for material in this document. 

 

This appeal Document © G&JBriant 2019 

There is no restriction on making paper or electronic copies of the material in this 

document so long as reference is always made to the originators and copyright owners. 

Once submitted to the Council’s database the Copyright clause below is deemed 

sufficient to protect this copyright. 

 

Copyright 

Plans, drawings and material submitted to the local authority are protected by the Copyright 

Acts 1988 Act (section 47). You may only use material which is downloaded and/or printed 

for consultation purposes, to compare current applications with previous schemes and to 

check whether developments have been completed in accordance with the approved plans. 

Further copies must not be made without the prior permission of the copyright owner, (the 

applicant/ agent/ architect). You may, however, make copies of the decision notice provided 

the copies are not altered in any way.  

The above copyright is extracted from the Council’s planning database website. In the 

main the authors of this document have tried to avoid using material covered by this 

copyright, where this has not been possible attempts have been made to recognise the 

original copyright owners.  

 

Various Images Copyright © GBriant 2019 

Images taken by G Briant and used in this document are labelled with the above 

copyright. There is no restriction on making paper or electronic copies of these images 

so long as reference is always made to the originators copyright.  

Once submitted to the Council’s database the Copyright clause above is deemed 

sufficient to protect this copyright. 

 

Configuration Status 

Issue No Date Changed By Note 

1 28 Feb 2019 G Briant Version submitted to WHBC 

    

    

    

  

Page 30



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 3 of 19 
 

Introduction  

After we received the refusal notice issued on the 18th January 2019 we conducted a lengthy 
investigation and we have concluded that we have followed both the spirit of the Estate 
Management Scheme and all the Authorities stated policies and came to the realisation that there is 
no logical reason why this application to replace our old UVPC door with a modern composite one 
should have been refused, and hence we assert that the application has been unreasonably 
withheld.   

The appeal contains no new technical data but is based on a detailed analysis of the declared EMS 
policies of the authority and the interpretation of them that the authority has chosen to use in this 
case. 

The content of the rest of this appeal submission includes. 

(1) An explanation of how we believe we have complied with all the declared EMS policies of the 
Authority as made available on their website and hence why the application should have been 
approved in the first place. 

(2) An analysis of the refusal decision notice dated 18
th
 January 2019.  

Our analysis of this letter will in the main be covered by the arguments explained in section 3 
this is so I did not have to copy the entire letter into this document. We reserve the right to 
add additional verbal comments on this document at the appeal meeting. 

(3) An analysis of the Officer’s report (Delegated Application) also dated 18
th
 January 2019.  

This has resulted in a series of questions and comments that we would like explained using 
only information available to the Authority prior to 18

th
 January 2019. 

(4) Supporting letters from the immediate neighbours of 202 Knightsfield. 
Note we have spoken to every resident within the immediate area and no one has any 
objections to the proposed red door, everyone expressed bewilderment with the Council’s 
decision. It is also of interest that only about 25% had ever heard of the Estate Management 
Scheme and those were in the main long term residents or Council Tenants (who do not 
appear to be covered by the scheme).  

(5) Summary 
This is a recap of why we believe we have demonstrated that the original application should 
never have been refused. 

Page 31



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 4 of 19 
 

1.  Explanation of how we believe we have complied with all 
the declared EMS policies. 

This section lists the sequence of events leading to the application for a replacement door at 202 
Knightsfield and explains why it is our assertion that the application should have been approved 
rather than refused. 

We had been intending to change the windows and doors of the property for some time as some of 
the double glazed units were over 30 years old and were ill fitting, draughty and the double glazing 
units had failed,  this is a requirement on owners  within the Estate management Scheme area:-  

“To keep and maintain in good and substantial repair and condition: …. 
…. The external doors and windows…..” 

This process started in June 2018 where we requested quotes etc. and we finally choose a preferred 
supplier in October. We then had a meeting with a representative of the installers and we decided 
on the style of windows to ensure they matched as closely as possible the original design and then 
had to choose the door. 

Having lived in the area for nearly 40 years, we knew what the original design of the neighbourhood 
was and hence we decided to try to replicate as closely as possible the look of the original door 
which we believed was meant to be the purpose of the Estate Management Scheme, to preserve the 
heritage of the original Garden City Concept. 

The original doors in the area were all wooden, with Georgian style window panel; all painted either 
deep red or a light blue. Examples of the original doors both in style and colour are available for 
viewing in the immediate vicinity of 202 Knightsfield; photos are shown in figure 1 below. 

Figure 1 :- Examples of original doors in the original colours compared to proposed door 

The door at 202 Knightsfield was painted red until it was replaced in the 1990’s by the white UVPC 
doors utilised by the Council. When choosing a replacement composite door we carefully selected 
the style and colour and selected the door which is as shown above. The intention of this choice was 
to try to replicate as closer as possible the design of the original door and hence the concepts of the 
original Louis de Soissons design for the premises. It is worth noting that our immediate neighbours 
at number 204, who have also been long term residents in the area and hence knew what the 
original doors looked like, had also previously selected a similar style.  

Once we had selected our door we knew, as long term residents, that we needed permission from 
the Council for this change. But did not envisage any problem as the door selected in our opinion 
preserved the heritage of the original Garden City concept and design. 

Page 32



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 5 of 19 
 

I had checked the Council’s website and looked to see the process etc. needed to be followed I came 
across leaflets that included the following statement:- 

“Some works do not need consent: 

 replacement windows and doors of a different or the same materials which match the 

original design within the building (in terms of size and position of glazing bars, 

mullions, frames, transoms, sight lines and so on.)” 

A quick examination of the original door and proposed door, see figure 1 above, clearly 
demonstrates that the two items do not “match original design within the building (in terms of size 
and position of glazing bars, mullions, frames, transoms, sight lines and so on).” Only a direct copy of 
the original door would achieve this and they are no longer available on the normal market. 

Note I have no idea how newer residents in the area would be qualified to make the judgement that 
they do not need consent as 

(i) Most new residents of Welwyn garden City, (if they know anything about the EMS which the 
majority do not), would not know what the original doors looked like, I suspect they look at 
doors in the surrounding area and think if they pick a similar style that is okay. 

a. Note the Council website gives no indication of what the original windows or doors of any 
particular neighbourhood looked like to help in this individual assessment. 

b. Note the Council website also gives no explanation of what glazing bars, mullions, 
frames, transoms are and we would guess most applicants would not know.  

c. I have no idea what the sight line of a door is?  
The normal definition would be a straight uninterrupted line between 2 points so I am not 
sure how to apply that to the style or design of a door. 

d. There is no mention of the colour, if it was important it should be mentioned, as 
compared to mullions and transoms etc. this is something a local resident would be able 
to judge. Hence the Council’s own website gives permission for a local resident to 
choose any colour door without requiring written consent. 

e. Note another interpretation could be that the colour was part of the original design, which 
was our interpretation and hence that is why we choose red to “match the original 
design”. 

i. However this interpretation would not help most new residents as they would not 
know what the colour of the original doors were and again there is no mention on the 
website, so again we suspect they would look around their local neighbourhood and 
choose a colour that already exists. 

Having decided that we would require consent because the style of the door, (not the colour), did 
not match the original design we telephoned the council to check our interpretation it was therefore 
surprising to us that we were informed that the style of the door would be suitable, this was without 
any review by the Council of the proposed style against the original style.  

We were slightly concerned that we had received permission to change the style of the door verbally 
over the telephone as it is obvious that the style of door we had chosen doesn’t match the original 
design, see figure 1, and we were even more bemused that we required permission to return the 
door to an original colour. I assumed at that time this was because the Authority wished to keep 
appropriate records in its role in administrating the scheme. So we applied via email on the 5th of 
November and after a few Emails back and forward we resubmitted our application various times 
the last one on the 16th of November this included a section that we had written saying:- 

“Only difference to side view would be a change of colour from white to red and change from a 
single glazed unit to 2 side by side glazed units. (An impression of the new door was sent 

Page 33



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 6 of 19 
 

previously).  As mentioned before our intention is to change the colour of the front door back to a 
similar colour to that it was originally before the double glazing was installed in the house.”  

In the response letter dated 21st November 2018 we were informed that “we should receive a 
decision by the 14th of January 2019 if you have not agreed in writing to a later date”; note we did 
not agree in writing to a later date.   

At the time we were puzzled why such a simple request should require so much time to process, (8 
weeks), as for all intents and purposes once we had been given verbal permission for the change of 
style over the phone we could have preceded immediately in accordance with the Council’s own 
policy on changes that do not need consent, see argument above.  

Why did it require more than 8 weeks to refuse an application based on the colour of the door if the 
Council already had an undeclared “White Only” policy for the ex-Council Estates?   

When we finally received the refusal notice, last thing on a Friday evening 18th January, we were 
totally perplexed with the decision and more importantly found the reasons given in the refusal 
notice as being totally unbelievable. 

As expected, see the first line of page 2 of the refusal letter, we were more than just aggrieved, 
especially as we had done everything according to your declared and published processes and had 
chosen a door style and colour to match the original as required in your policies. We sent an Email 
immediately informing you that we wished to appeal, but received no confirmation of that 
correspondence. 

In preparing our appeal case we have conducted a thorough investigation into the Council’s 
operation of the Estate Management Scheme and the Council’s associated declared policies and 
have also investigated the Planning Database to look at past applications and appeals and were 
convinced that it was the Council’s incoherent policies, previous inactivity and decisions that were 
the problem.  

We are not intending to present any of the evidence we gathered on the EMS operation at this time 
as we believe our appeal stands alone without any reference to previous precedents set by the 
Council, however we may wish to use this data plus our detailed analysis of how the Estate 
Management Scheme has, and is still being administered, at a later time if required. 

 

    

Page 34



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 7 of 19 
 

2. Analysis of the refusal decision notice dated 18th Jan 2019 

We have not included here a copy of the refusal notice, as we did not want to include the whole 
document as is required by the Council’s copyright clause. The notice is available on the Council’s 
planning application database. The extract below is taken from the case officer’s report. 

“The proposed front door, by virtue of its uncharacteristic colour, would constitute a change 
that would be significantly out of character with the area to the detriment of the character and 
appearance of the property and the immediate street scene. Accordingly the proposal would 
fail to maintain the values and amenities of the Estate Management Scheme and is contrary to 
Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.” 

The refusal reason given on the decision notice is a straight cut and paste of the reason for refusal 
on page 2 of the officer’s report as determined by the reviewing officer and hence the questions 
relating to this notice are identical to those detailed in section 3. 

It is worth mentioning that the Estate management Booklet contains the phrase:- 

“The Scheme is to be administered  for the purpose of maintaining and enhancing amenities 
and values in Welwyn Garden City and with due regard to the convenience and welfare of 
persons residing working and carrying out business there.” 

This would appear to be an obligation on the Authority not the residents, an obligation that the 
Council has singly failed to do in this case and in most other cases we have analysed. 

We reserve the right to make further verbal comments on the refusal notice at the appeal meeting. 

 

Page 35



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 8 of 19 
 

3. Analysis of the Officer’s report (Delegated Application) 
also dated 18

th
 January 2019 

The following section contains a detailed assessment of the contents of the case officer’s report 
which forms the substantive case for the council’s reasons to refuse the application. 
 

(i) “The front doors of the houses in Knightsfield are predominately white” 
a. If you walk along Knightsfield from the high numbers at the junction with the A1000 to the 

top of the hill then down to the junction with Haldens there is no characteristic colour. 
There is Red. Blue, Black Green, Yellow and White amongst many others in a variety of 
door styles. Hence we would refute this statement. As support for this statement please see 
supporting letter from Mr G Dobson of 203 Knightsfield in Section 4. 

b. Where there are white doors, these are in the majority the remnants of the UVPC revolution 
of the 1990s where white was the only colour available. It is very apparent then when 
owners need to change their door they have in the main replaced them with solid primary 
colours more in keeping with the original design and heritage of the area rather than the 
1990 time capsule that seems to be being enforced. 
 

(ii)  “the doors in the terrace containing the application site are all white upvc”. 
a. This is irrelevant as they can never be seen at the same time as 202 Knightsfield since it 

has a side entrance, see figure 3 below. In particular 196 can only be seen when in their 
garden knocking at the door. 

b. The only door that can normally be seen at the same time as the front door of 202 
Knightsfield is the side gate entrance to the property that is painted a strong primary red, 
and hence the proposed door is in total harmony with that much more relevant view. 

c. 202 Knightsfield is one of four 4-bedroomed houses in the immediate neighbourhood, two of 
which are still owned by the Council and still have the original doors fitted, one still retaining 
the blue colour matching its immediate environment, e.g. its side gate equivalent to the 
layout of 202 Knightsfield. The other has been painted an unattractive white to match the 
UVPC door of the adjoining extension, the blue door is definitely the more attractive of the 
two.  
The other property of this four is 196 Knightsfield which is the other end of terrace to 202 
and as mentioned above is totally invisible in the street scene. 
 

(iii) “can be seen from some distance along Knightsfield from the north where the road curves and 
the land is lower”  
a. The door is hidden for most of this view due to the presence of the high hedges at number 

208 Knightsfield. The view from our front door to the stated location is restricted due to the 
same hedges and hence if we can’t see it, it can’t see us. See figure 2 below. 

Figure 2 :- View from front of 202 Knightsfield towards junction of Knightsfield and Kirklands 
showing obstruction of view by hedge at 206 and 208 Knightsfield  

  

Page 36



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 9 of 19 
 

b. As the analysis in figure 3 below shows, due to the location and the characteristics of the 
surrounding area, the door is only visible from a very small area as is demonstrated in figure 
3. 
As can be seen:-  

i. The vast majority of sightlines to the door are obscured by other buildings,  
 

ii. The view of the Southbound Traffic on Knightsfield is obscured by the hedges at 206 
and 208. Knightsfield and parked cars. 
 

iii. The Northbound traffic would never normally see the door. 
  

iv. The only significant view of the door is from our Neighbours at 1 & 2 Malmsdale, and 
209 to 213 Knightsfield. None of whom were contacted by the Council. We have 
however talked to them all and they all find the reason for the refusal unbelievable 
and have offered to write letters of support, not all of which have been received at the 
time of writing this appeal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 3 :- Sightlines of the door at 202 Knightsfield 
 

(iv) “Front doors in the vicinity that are not white (e.g. No’s 201 and 203 on the opposite side of the 
road and No’s 196 and 198 in the next terrace down) do not appear to have Estate 
Management Consent for replacement doors in other colour”  

a. No 201 has a white door.  
b. 196 and 198 are not in the next terrace down they are in the same terrace as 202. I 

assume the report meant 203, 205 206 and 208? 
i. Both of these errors appear to show a lack of careful analysis and/or a lack of any 

meaningful review process in the preparation of the report. 
c. Of the houses quoted above, I believe that all have been in private ownership for a 

long time, (see figure 5 below for evidence for 203 & 205), and it is also possible they 
are not covered by the Estate Management Scheme. They had all changed their 
doors a long time before the 1990’s replacement door programme to the Council 

Page 37



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 10 of 19 
 

houses which would indicate that the Council had no intent to maintain the harmony 
of the area and did not take any account of the owner’s amenities and values that 
existed at that time in the neighbourhood. 

d. Our analysis indicates that we are the only owners in the immediate area, (including 
the Council), to have ever asked for EMS permission to change our door and 
therefore find it amazing that we have been refused permission to return the colour of 
the door back to the original designed by Louis de Soissons on the basis of people, 
mainly the Council, in the past, opting for the cheapest option for door replacement. 
 

(v) “The applicant has submitted that the front door was originally red but substantial evidence has 
not been submitted.”  
a. The original design of Welwyn Garden City and in particular this North West area included 

doors of generally the same style but in many different colours including red and blue, 
evidence of which is all over W G City, see the statement, in section 4, from the owner of  
204 Knightsfield, another long term resident of the area.  
This is something we assumed the administrators of the scheme would have as common 
knowledge and hence there was no need to substantiate the statement. One thing for 
certain is that, in this area, none of the original doors were white.  
In the past when wooden doors were the only option you would always have painted the 
exterior of the house in more expensive coloured paint leaving the cheap white paint for 
internal doors that no one else could see.  
There are two of the original doors in red and blue almost next to one another around the 
corner from 202 Knightsfield. See figure 1 above for pictures of these. 
We didn’t provide evidence that our original door was red, because as shown above, it was 
common knowledge to both residents of the town and also the Authority that within this area  
all Commission for New Towns, (and then Council) houses, were either red or blue. This 
was the only choice you had as a tenant during the regular maintenance cycles, “choose 
Red or Blue”.  
Over time as properties were bought from the Authority the owners have painted the doors 
in different colours but always strong primary colours, never white, with the one exception at 
185 Knightsfield which is a leased property from the Council, see figure 4 below. 
It is also obvious  when viewing the local street scenes that it contains side gates and 
garage doors in the original colours because these were never changed during the All White 
UVPC door and window replacement project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 4 :- Examples of original doors in various colours in the local Neighbourhood 

Page 38



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 11 of 19 
 

 

(vi) “The doors in Knightsfield were replaced as one project in recent years and were all white at 
one time”  

s statement is completely untrue and shows a shocking lack of understanding and 
knowledge of the area. The doors replaced “as one project” were only the remaining Council 
owned properties. This seems to be suggesting that all the houses in Knightsfield were at that 
time owned by the Council; the houses in Knightsfield have always contained an element of 
privately owned houses. At some time in the distant past the houses in the immediate vicinity of 
202 Knightsfield may have all been owned by the Commission for the New Towns or its 
predecessor, however by the time the Council conducted this door and window replacement 
project Government policies, encouraging the purchase of rented accommodation, had seen 
the percentage of rented homes in this immediate vicinity to have dropped well below 50%.This 
vision of a whole road with white doors is absolute nonsense. It has been difficult to obtain 
photographic evidence of this period as before the age of the digital camera it was unusual to 
waste money taking pictures of the outside of houses. However I have included below a 
photograph that shows that numbers 203 and 205 were non-white before this scheme was 
implemented. Note a close look at the picture also indicates one of the original blue doors at 1 
Malmsdale opposite as seen through the car windows as this was still Council owned, see 
figure 5 below. 
 

Figure 5. Picture taken June 1988 showing street scene opposite 202 Knightsfield 

Note the houses at 203 and 205 Knightsfield had non-white doors prior to the council UVPC door change as they were owner 

occupier. Also Note the door at 1 Malmsdale is still an original wooden door in blue as it was still Council owned at that time. 
 

(vii) “The purpose of the Estate Management Scheme is to ensure that the cumulative impact of 
incremental changes does not undermine the amenities and values of the area”  
a. Can you please demonstrate an auditable trail back to the original Estate 

Management booklet, as I believe this was not the original purpose of the Scheme? 

Page 39



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 12 of 19 
 

If not then please explain where this policy derives from. 
 

b. Please explain what objective criteria has been used, or how have staff been trained 
to be able to judge whether a change “does not undermine the amenities and values 
of the area” 
 

c. Can you also include either by reference, or by including the text in the updated 
report to the ESM Appeal Committee, show the internal guidelines that the officers 
work to, that ensure that when they are using their delegated powers, they make 
consistent, repeatable, judgements across all the differing applications?  
 

(viii) “The proposed change of door would constitute a change that would be out of character with 
the area.”   
a. “Area” is a very vague term which needs defining.  

Can you therefore please explain either by listing the streets, and house numbers or 
using a block plan what is the definition of “area” you have used to justify your 
recommendation of refusal?  
 
As stated previously there are a vast array of different colours and designs in our local 
neighbourhood, including the whole of Knightsfield, Malmsdale, Kirklands, Oakdale, 
Summerdale, Ingles etc. We have decided not to include any photographic evidence of this 
to save paper and ink, however a review of the letter of support from Mr Dobson, 203 
Knightsfield in section 4 confirms this, as can anyone who has ever visited any part of 
Welwyn Garden City. 
Having lived in this area for nearly 40 years we would consider as a minimum that our 
neighbourhood is Sherrards, potentially restricting it to just BEC ward as BEC is quite 
representative of the whole of Sherrards. We have never thought of our neighbourhood as 
being in a tenement block of 4 houses.  
To justify the Statement above: 

i. Definition of “Neighbourhood” :- A district where people live. 
ii. Definition of “District” :- An area of land regarded as an administrative or 

geographical area. 
Hence a totally supportable definition of area would be Sherrards but we are happy to 
restrict this to BEC which is the smaller administrative area. 
 

(ix) “would be very visible”  
a. We do not believe this is true for the reasons given earlier and demonstrated in figure 2 

above. 
 

(x) “set a precedent for other changes of this nature to the detriment of the character amenities 
and values of the area.” 
a. In our opinion the precedent was set by the original designers, working under Louis de 

Soissons Master Plan. 
b. We are not setting a precedent; there are many doors identical to ours in the area. The 

precedent has therefore already been set by others in the area, who have put in red doors 
the same or similar to ours. It is possible that some of these may have been changed 
without EMS approval, there could be numerous potential reasons for this including:- 

i. We know of cases where the door was changed from the original style and colour of 
wooden door directly to a red composite door. Hence according to your latest guidelines 
would not need written approval. 

ii. The owner was given advice over the phone that they did not need to apply. Note we 
were also told over the phone that the style of door was okay and if I hadn’t mentioned 
the colour we would also have been given verbal approval. 

iii. Owners have looked at your advice on the Council’s website and decided on the basis of 
the information it contains that they did not need to ask for permission, as it is “work that 
does not need permission”. 

iv. They were changed the doors during the period that the Council did not seem interested 
in administrating the scheme. 

v. They are not covered by the scheme. 

Page 40



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 13 of 19 
 

c. Whatever the reason, coloured composite doors are what people have been putting in when 
replacing their front doors for quite a while now, We fail to see how replacing a cheap white 
UVPC door with an expensive, composite wooden look door is in any way a “detriment of 
the character amenities and values of the area”. 

d. In our view it vastly improves the character amenities and values of the area, and it is 
something that we would encourage others in the neighbourhood to do so that we get away 
from the cheap white UVPC look, which seems to be favoured by the Council, to the original 
bright colourful street scene that was the concept and plan of the original designers whose 
heritage you are claiming to want to preserve. 
 

(xi) “The alterations to the deisgn of the door and loss of glazing bars would be acceptable”. Your 
misspelling not mine. 
a. This is of no surprise as we had already been told this over the phone without anyone ever 

seeing a plan or photo of the proposed style of door. 
 

(xii) “considered to be contrary”  
a. Can you please confirm what definition of “considered” you have used? 
i. “To be of the opinion of”?  

or 
ii. “To think carefully about (a problem or decision)”. If this is the definition that was 

intended then we are assuming that the careful analysis that was conducted on this 
application is that which is contained in the case officer’s report and this has been 
demonstrated to be incorrect or subjective. 
 

(xiii) Reason for Refusal 

“The proposed front door, by virtue of its uncharacteristic colour, would constitute a change that 
would be significantly out of character with the area to the detriment of the character and 
appearance of the property and the immediate street scene. Accordingly the proposal would fail to 
maintain the values and amenities of the Estate Management Scheme and is contrary to Policy EM1 
of the Estate Management Scheme.” 

a. “by virtue of its uncharacteristic colour” 
i. Can you please explain what the characteristic colours of the area are? 

 
ii. Can you also therefore please list what are the allowable colours for the area are if 

red is an uncharacteristic colour? 
 

iii. Can you please explain why the colours chosen by the original designer’s 
including Louis De Soissons are not included in this list of allowable colours when 
there are many examples in the local area of the original doors in the original 
colours, including at least one still owned by the Council? 
 

b. The definition of “area” you have used is presumably the same as that which is explained in 
the response to the same question above. 
 

c. Can you please explain what objective criteria has been used to state that the 
proposal “would fail to maintain the values …..”?  
Bearing in mind that a coloured door is significantly more expensive than a white door and is 
in keeping with the original design and heritage of the neighbourhood as proposed by Louis 
de Soissons? 
 

d. Can you please explain what objective criteria has been used to state that the 
proposal  “would fail to maintain the ….. amenities…”? when the case officer’s report 
includes a statement that “No impact on residential amenities of neighbouring occupier” and 
therefore has marked the box as not applicable.  

i. We are happy to concur with the case officer’s view, as in reality, this proposal has no 
impact on what we would define as amenities. In addition it should be noted that the 
application received no neighbour or councillor objections. 
 

Page 41



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 14 of 19 
 

e. “contrary to Policy EM1”   
i. We believe that we have demonstrated that we have meet all our obligations placed on 

us by the Estate Management Scheme and hence do not accept your statement as we 
have followed your declared policies and have chosen a door style and colour as close to 
the original door as is possible within the possibilities of the material chosen. 
Also, as mentioned above, the wording in policy EM1 is derived from wording that is 
really an obligation on the Council not the residents. So it is difficult to see how this can 
be used as a reason for refusal. 
 

ii. Can you therefore please demonstrate an auditable trail for policy EM1 back to the 
original Estate Management Booklet, since this appears to be the criteria that is 
used to justify the refusal of the application, whereas the refusal letter “Notice of 
Decision” references the Leasehold Reform Act 1967? 
 

f. Can you also please explain how much review was conducted of the case officer’s 
report before issuing the refusal notice since both are dated the same day? 

Page 42



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 15 of 19 
 

4.  Supporting letters from immediate neighbours. 
 

The following section contains supporting letters from neighbours in the immediate vicinity of 202 
Knightsfield. It would be possible to include far more indications of support from local residents as 
anyone in the area we have spoken to have found it ridiculous that the application has been refused. 
 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 43



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 16 of 19 
 

 

 
 
 

  

Page 44



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 17 of 19 
 

 
 

Page 45



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 18 of 19 
 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 46



Issue 1 28-Feb-19  Appeal Submission to support for Application 6/2018/2849/EM 

 

This Page may contain copyright material See Copyright page for any appropriate conditions 

Page 19 of 19 
 

5.  Summary  
 
Having conducted a lengthy investigation our conclusion is that we have followed both the spirit of 
the Estate Management Scheme and the letter of the Authorities stated policy and have concluded 
that there is no logical reason why this application should have been refused. 

Having lived in the area for nearly 40 years we knew what were the original colours used in the 
design of the neighbourhood, Solid Red or Blue, and hence we tried replicate as closely as possible 
the look of the original door which we believed was meant to be the purpose of the Estate 
Management Scheme, to preserve the heritage of the original Garden City Concept. In addition we 
followed to the letter the Council’s stated policy on their website:- 

“Some works do not need consent: replacement windows and doors of a different or 

the same materials which match the original design…..” 

We are concerned the Authority itself does not follow the policy above as evidenced by the verbal 
permissions given, and find it hard to believe why it should take more than 8 weeks to have come to 
the totally unbelievable reason given in the refusal notice. 

The Authority has failed to meet its obligations “to administer the scheme with due regard to the 
convenience and welfare of persons residing in Welwyn Garden City” both in this case and through 
its entire period of administration. 

The analysis that was conducted by the Authority on this application to justify the decision of refusal 
has been demonstrated to be incorrect or subjective. 

Having conducted a 100% poll of the residents in the immediate locality, including those actually 
impacted by the proposal (something the Authority did not do), all of them fully support the 
application and all agree it increases the “value” of the area. 

We therefore conclude that consent for the change has been unreasonably withheld. 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2018/2849/EM
Location: 202 Knightsfield Welwyn Garden City AL8 7RQ
Proposal: Replacement of front door
Officer: Mrs June Pagdin

Recommendation: Refused

6/2018/2849/EM 
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

The application site comprises a two-storey, end-of-terrace house on the east 
side of Knightsfield.  The site is within the Estate Management Area.

The house is on a corner plot where a rear vehicle entrance to Homerswood 
School opens off Knightsfield. 

The front door is on the side of the property, facing and accessed by steps from 
Homerswood.  It is surrounded by a white door fame and flat roofed porch in 
the same style as the other houses in the terrace.
The door was a white upvc with top half in one glazed panel of six panes.

Proposal
Estate Management Consent is sought to change the front door from white 
upvc to a red, composite, timber effect door with two glazed panels in the upper 
half.

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history

Notifications
Neighbour 
responses

Support:  0 Object:  0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

None received

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Does the design (form, size, scale, siting) and character (appearance within the streetscene) 
maintain and/or enhance the amenities and values of the area?

Yes No N/A
Comment (if required):     

The front doors of the houses in Knightsfield are predominantly white.  The doors in the terrace 

Page 49



2 of 3

containing the application site are all white upvc.  While the application site front door does not face 
onto Knightsfield, it is very close to the corner and can be seen from some distance along 
Knightsfield from the north where the road curves and the land is lower.

Front doors in the vicinity that are not white (eg No’s 201 and 203 on the opposite side of the road 
and No’s 196 and 198 in the next terrace down) do not appear to have Estate Management Consent 
for replacement doors in other colours.

The applicant has submitted that the front door was originally red but substantial evidence has not 
been submitted.  The doors in Knightsfield were replaced as one project in recent years and were all 
white at one time.  The purpose of the Estate Management Scheme is to ensure that the cumulative 
impact of incremental changes does not undermine the amenities and values of the area. 

The proposed change of door would constitute a change that would be out of character with the 
area, and would be very visible and set a precedent for other changes of this nature to the detriment 
of the character amenities and values of the area. 

The alterations to the deisgn of the door and loss of glazing bars would be acceptable.

The proposal is, therefore, considered to be contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management 
Scheme.

Does the development minimise impact on neighbours?
Yes No N/A

Comment (if required):      No impact on residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers.

Vehicle Hardstandings Only.  Sections (a) and (b) completed only if hardstanding proposed
(a) Would the hardstanding retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping?  

Yes No 
Comment (if required):      N/A

(b) Would only the minimum length of hedgerow required to access the hardstanding be 
removed?  (e.g. privacy, outlook, light etc.)

 Yes  No N/A
Comment (if required):     N/A  

Any other considerations 

Conclusion
The proposed change of door would constitute a change that would be significantly out of character 
with the area, would be very visible in its setting and set a precedent for other changes of this nature 
to the detriment of the character amenities and values of the area. 

The proposal is, therefore, considered to be contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management 
Scheme and is recommended for refusal of consent.

Reason for Refusal: 

1. The proposed front door, by virtue of its uncharacteristic colour, would constitute a 
change that would be significantly out of character with the area to the detriment of 
the character and appearance of the property and the immediate street scene.  
Accordingly the proposal would fail to maintain the values and amenities of the
Estate Management Scheme and is contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.

Page 50



3 of 3

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

Plan A Location Plan Scale 19 November 2018
Plan D Proposed Side Elevations 19 November 2018
Plan B Block Plan 19 November 2018
Plan C Existing Side Elevation 19 November 2018

Determined By:

Mrs Sarah Smith
18 January 2019

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Author: Kerrie Charles

Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Wards: Welwyn East

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME PANEL – 08 April 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

6/2018/2851/EM

74 ROSEDALE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 1DR

REPLACEMENT OF CONSERVATORY

APPLICANT:  Mr Edmonds

(Welwyn East)
1. Background

1.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for 
“the replacement of an existing conservatory”. The application (reference: 
6/2018/2851/EM) was refused on 28 January 2019 for the following reason:

The proposal is not reflective of the character and appearance of the dwelling 
and would have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the 
surrounding area and the Garden City as a whole.  This conflicts with Policy EM1 
of the Estate Management Scheme.

1.2   The application was an amended Estate Management Application following 
refused application reference 6/2018/0110/EM, which was refused by the Estate 
Management Appeal Panel on 15 August 2018 for “a replacement of existing 
conservatory”.

2. Site Description

2.1. The appeal site is a detached two storey dwelling which forms part of a collection 
of nine properties of similar styles in the central development in Rosedale. The 
property has a rear conservatory that was granted Estate Management consent 
in 2005 (ref: W6/2005/0360/EM.

3. The Proposal

3.1. The proposal seeks consent for the replacement of the existing conservatory with 
a new conservatory type extension of the same size and footprint. Instead of 
having a glass roof, the new structure would have a mixture of contemporary 
grey panels combined with glass on the roof. The new frames would be white 
upvc with glass and brick elevations. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



4. Relevant Estate Management History

4.1. W6/2005/0360/EM - Rear conservatory granted consent 05 May 2005

4.2. 6/2018/0110/EM - The replacement of an existing conservatory, refused by 
Estate Management Appeal Panel 15 August 2018.

5. Policy

5.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008)

EM1 – Extensions and Alterations

6. Representations Received

6.1. No representations have been received.

7. Discussion

7.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of EM consent. The appellant’s letter of 
appeal is attached at Appendix 1, and the original officer’s report for application 
reference 6/2018/2851/EM, is attached at Appendix 2.

7.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the proposed 
conservatory on the values and amenities of the surrounding area. The impact 
on the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers is acceptable.

7.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and in 
order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate 
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme and 
its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes are 
kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town. 

7.4. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) states that extensions 
and alterations to existing buildings will only be allowed if they are in keeping with 
the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the existing 
building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the 
surrounding area. 

7.5. The appeal property is a two storey, detached dwelling located centrally within 
Rosedale.  The property, along with nine other detached dwellings were 
designed with distinctive features and in similar styles in this central section of 
the road. Six of these nine properties have single storey 
extensions/conservatories. Of the six, two have flat roofs and four have 
conservatories.  

7.6. Policy EM1 aims for alterations to be in keeping with the existing property and 
not harm the values and amenities of the area. It is therefore essential that the 
uniformity in appearance of dwellings is maintained; in particular those features 
which are visible from the street frontage.  

7.7. In this instance, whilst there is no objection to the principle of a replacement 
conservatory, the refusal relates specifically to the introduction of a more solid 

Page 54



form of roof. In the Garden City single storey extensions are generally expected 
to be designed with a flat roof which would limit the impact of the development 
on the rear elevation and maintain a consistency with the design and appearance 
of single storey extensions.  Generally, extensions with solid pitch roof forms are 
not consistent with the style of flat roofed single storey extensions which are 
prolific within Welwyn Garden City’s Estates Management areas.

7.8. The quality of the architecture in this central section of nine properties has largely 
been maintained with flat-roof extensions or conservatory additions being a 
typical feature. Conservatory additions are largely acceptable with pitched or 
sloping roofs as their roofs consist of glass panels which are lightweight and 
transparent, subsequently having little contribution to the overall bulk and mass 
of the structure. 

7.9. Although more glass panels have been introduced within this application, the roof 
will still remain to be predominantly solid and would represent a more dominating 
form of development to the rear of this property. The solid roof form would no 
longer read as lightweight and transparent within the street scene. It would 
become more visible, given its more solid form becoming harmful to the 
amenities and values of the property itself and to the wider surrounding area. 
The existing conservatory (and the rear of this property) is readily visible from 
the surrounding street given the orientation of the house and therefore causing 
harm to the values and amenities of the area. 

7.10. A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of the appeal. 

7.11. The appellant has stated that at the appeal it was discussed that a ratio of 60% 
solid and 40% panels would be acceptable design target.  However there is no 
record within the minutes from the 15 August 2019 to confirm this or from any 
officer that attended the panel.

7.12. The applicant also stated that the case officer contacted them to advise that if 
the applicant could agree to re-position the glazed area this would be 
recommended for approval.  The case officer would prefer glass along the valley 
gutter and hipped end facing the road, so visually from the road this would look 
all glass. 

7.13. Unfortunately it is not possible to manufacture a roof with glazed units all along 
the valley gutter, we informed the case officer and asked the question as under 
the previous appeal the advice was to increase the glass area, there were no 
discussions on the position of the glass.

7.14. A compelling case has not been made by the appellant to demonstrate why the 
circumstances advanced by the occupants of this particular property, when 
considered in its context, should override the wider values and amenities of 
Rosedale.

8. Conclusion

8.1. The proposal would fail to enhance the appearance of the existing property given 
its pitched roof design with a more solid roof form. The conservatory extension 

Page 55



would appear out of keeping with the property and the surrounding properties 
and form an overly dominant form to the rear of the dwelling which is 
unacceptable. 

8.2. The proposal, by virtue of its solid pitched roof design, would not be in keeping 
with the character and appearance of the application property and the 
surrounding properties and street scene.  It would fail to represent high quality 
design, and would be detrimental to the amenities and values of the Garden City.  
Accordingly, the proposal would be contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme. 

9. Recommendation

9.1. That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.

Name of author Kerrie Charles 01707 357253

Title: Development Management Officer

Date 12 March 2019

Background papers:

Appendix 1: Appellants grounds of appeal

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report

Page 56



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Reasons for Appeal 

Application 6/2018/2851/EM 

The current conservatory was approved planning permission in 2005 (Photo Attached) 

Mr & Mrs Edmonds wants to update this conservatory. We originally applied for planning permission 
ref 6/2018/0110/EM, the application refused and the appeal dismissed. 

The current application we are appealing ref 6/2018/2851/EM is a re-design of the conservatory that 
was dismissed under the previous appeal. 

We have attached our original ‘reasons for appeal’ for the previous application along with 
supporting photos, as we feel these are relevant to this appeal. 

The original application ref 6/2018/0110 main reason for refusal of planning permission was the 
pitched roof design. As the case officer suggested this was an extension as opposed to a 
conservatory. Our argument within the previous appeal was that this design is still a conservatory 
but a more modern design. (Original reasons for appeal and photos attached) 

Mrs Edmonds attended the appeal and it was discussed with the committee that the local planning 
authority had not come across this type of conservatory design before but are likely to come across 
more in the future, Mrs Edmonds was advised by the committee to increase the glass area and re-
submit the application. Mrs Edmonds was given the opinion that doing this the application would 
then be approved. Among members of the committee were Chris Garth and Sarah Smith. 

A ratio of 60% solid and 40% glass was disused at the meeting as an acceptable design target. 

After the meeting Mrs Edmonds along with the conservatory company meet Sarah Madyausiku who 
agreed the position of the glazed units. 

Attached to this appeal are pictures of the glass area of the first application dismissed, the current 
application with the increased glass area and the case officer Kerrie Charles recommendations to 
the position of the glazed units. 

Mrs Edmonds increased the glass area form the previous application and re-submitted the 
application, based on the comments made under the last appeal Mrs Edmonds was confident this 
would be approved. 

The case officer contacted us towards the end of the application process and mentioned that she 
had discussed this with her line manager and if we could agree to re-position the glazed area this 
would be recommended for approval. 

The case officer would prefer glass along the valley gutter and hipped end facing the road, so visually 
from the road this would look all glass. (Case officers recommended design attached) 

Unfortunately it is not possible to manufacture a roof with glazed units all along the valley gutter, we 
informed the case officer and asked the question as under the previous appeal the advice was to 
increase the glass area, there were no discussions on the position of the glass. 

We asked the case officer Kerrie Charles if there were any other solutions we could come up with to 
seek a more positive outcome with this application, Mrs Charles informed us she would discuss this 
with her line manager. 

Page 59



Unfortunately the case officer then sent the email to ourselves instead of her line manager ‘Hi 
Sarah, Can we discuss this one again please.  He cannot reduce any further than submitted.  What do 
you think?  Shall I just refuse? 

We emailed back to reminded the case officer the problem was the position of the glazed units 
along the valley gutter and not Mr & Mrs Edmonds willingness to reduce the panels further, this has 
never been discussed by case officer. In fact the case officer’s recommendation has a lower glass 
area than Mr & Mrs Edmonds application submitted. 

We did not receive any other response, other than a refusal decision notice. 

With the discussions now over the position of the glazed units we seem to have moved away from 
this being a pitched roof extension and the only objection to the design is the glazed area. Mr & Mrs 
Edmonds thought he had followed the appeal committee’s advice and increased the glass area. 

The question is now, should this appeal be allowed as we have increased the glass area? 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2018/2851/EM
Location: 74 Rosedale Welwyn Garden City AL7 1DR
Proposal: Proposed replacement rear conservatory
Officer:  Mrs Kerrie Charles

Recommendation: Refused

6/2018/0110/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

One of nine similar properties in the central development in the middle of 
Rosedale.

This application is a resubmission following a refused application 
6/2018/0110/EM which was for “the replacement of glass conservatory roof 
with tiled roof (to match house roof)”.

This proposal is for a proposed rear replacement conservatory.  Within this 
application the applicant has inserted more glass panes into the proposed roof.

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history
Application Number: W6/2005/0360/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 05 May 2005
Proposal: Erection of rear conservatory

Application Number: 6/2017/2699/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 29 January 2018
Proposal: Erection of two sheds following demolition of two existing sheds. 
Removal of trees/hedges.

Application Number: 6/2018/110/EM            Decision: Refused 
Date:  9 March 2018
Proposal: Replacement of glass conservatory roof with tiled roof (to match 
house roof)

- The decision was appealed at Estate Management Appeal Panel and 
the appeal was dismissed.

Notifications
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

None

Relevant Policies

Page 61



2 of 3

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Does the design (form, size, scale, siting) and character (appearance within the streetscene) 
maintain and/or enhance the amenities and values of the area?

Yes No N/A
Comment (if required):    

The previous refused application mentioned that Policy EM1 states:
Extensions in the Garden City are typically designed with a flat roof. In this part of the Garden City, 
the properties within the area are characterised by flat-roof single storey structures that contribute to 
the amenities and values of the area and the Garden City. The quality of the architecture in this area 
has largely been maintained with flat-roof extensions and additions still being a typical feature. 
Within the cluster of 9 properties in this central part of Rosedale, there are examples of conservatory 
type extensions with differing roof forms. 

Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (Extensions and Alterations) seeks to ensure that 
extensions and alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if they are in keeping with the 
design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the existing building.  That policy 
seeks to preserve the unique architectural heritage of the town and its buildings and therefore the 
Council expects that all applications for extensions and alterations respect and do not harm the 
character and appearance of the building and the street scene. 

The previous application which was refused asked for consent for a replacement conservatory that 
would have a part solid grey insulated aluminium panels within the roof.   The revised plans now 
being considered show the amount of glass panels increased, however there would still be a greater 
number of solid grey panels installed.

The applicant has attempted to increase the amount of glass panels that are to be installed on the 
roof, however the solid roof panels that remain would be readily visible within the streetscene.  
Therefore the proposed plans would continue to be contrary to policy EM1, by virtue of its pitched 
solid roof design and it would fail to maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden 
City. 

Does the development minimise impact on neighbours?
Yes No N/A

Comment (if required):    The proposal would not adversely affect the light amenity, privacy or
increase overlooking between the host dwelling and neighbouring properties. The proposal would 
not be overbearing to neighbouring dwellings. 

Vehicle Hardstandings Only.  Sections (a) and (b) completed only if hardstanding proposed
(a) Would the hardstanding retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping?  

Yes No 
Comment (if required):      N/A

(b) Would only the minimum length of hedgerow required to access the hardstanding be 
removed?  (e.g. privacy, outlook, light etc.)

 Yes  No N/A
Comment (if required):      

Any other considerations 
None

Conclusion
The proposal is not reflective of the character and appearance of the dwelling and would have a 

Page 62



3 of 3

detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding area and the Garden City as a 
whole. This conflicts with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. The proposal is not reflective of the character and appearance of the dwelling and 
would have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding 
area and the Garden City as a whole.  This conflicts with Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

Block Plan Block Plan 6 November 2018
Location 
Plan

Location Plan 6 November 2018

Page 1 Existing Elevations 6 November 2018
Page 2 Existing Floor Plan and Front 

Elevation
6 November 2018

Page 3 Existing Roof Plan 6 November 2018
Page 3.5 Existing Cross Section 6 November 2018
Page 4 Proposed Elevations 6 November 2018
Page 5 Proposed Floor Plan and 

Front Elevation
6 November 2018

Page 6 Proposed Roof Plan 6 November 2018

Determined By:

Mr Michael Robinson
4 February 2019

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 97 HANDSIDE LANE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2018/1776/EM - RETROSPECTIVE ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSION
	2 - 97 Handside Lane_Redacted - Appendix 1
	3 - Photos - 97 Handside Lane - Appendix 1
	4 - Appendix 2 - 97 Handside Lane

	8 202 KNIGHTSFIELD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2018/2849/EM - REPLACEMENT FRONT DOOR
	2 - Appendix 1 - 202 Knightsfield - Redacted
	3 - 202 Knightsfield - Appendix 2

	9 74 ROSEDALE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY -  6/2018/2851/EM -   REPLACEMENT OF CONSERVATORY
	2 - Grounds of Appeal
	3 - Delegated Report

	13 UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF THE MANAGEMENT SCHEME FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES OF THAT SCHEME



